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NON-PRECEDENTIAL DECISION - SEE SUPERIOR COURT I.0.P. 65.37

B.S. :  IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF
: PENNSYLVANIA
V.
S.P.
Appellant :  No. 394 EDA 2017

Appeal from the Order December 21, 2016
In the Court of Common Pleas of Lehigh County Civil Division at No(s):
No. DR--14-01312,
PACSES 141114817

BEFORE: PANELLA, J., OLSON, J., and STEVENS*, P.].E.
MEMORANDUM BY STEVENS, P.J.E.: FILED FEBRUARY 22, 2018

Appellant, S.P. (“Father”), appeals from the order entered in the Court
of Common Pleas of Lehigh County denying in part and granting in part his
exceptions to the court’s March 14, 2016, order of support awarding child
support and alimony pendente lite (APL).! Chief among Father’s several
claims on appeal is that the court erroneously granted the petition of Appellee,

B.S. ("Mother”), to modify a prior support order when she failed to

1 From our review of Father’s appeal, we understand it to challenge the trial
court’s order only with respect to the child support obligations it assigns. To
the extent Father intended his appeal to challenge the trial court’s award of
APL, as well—and we do not discern such an intent—we lack jurisdiction to
consider such an issue. See Calibeo v. Calibeo, 663 A.2d 184 (Pa. Super.
1995) (order for either spousal support or alimony pendente lite is
interlocutory and not appealable until all economic claims have been
resolved).

* Former Justice specially assigned to the Superior Court.
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demonstrate a material and substantial change in circumstances had occurred
since entry of the order. We affirm.
The trial court aptly summarizes the factual and procedural history of

the case:

[Defendant/Appellant] Father, [S.P.], and [Plaintiff/Appellee]
Mother, [B.S.], were married in India on March 20, 2005. Father
is 41 years of age, born on October 1, 1975. Mother, [B.S.], is 33
years of age, born February 1, 1983. Together, they resided in
[the marital residence]. There are two children born to the
marriage, [a boy], age ten, and [a girl], age nine.

Xk >k

On August 8, 2014, Mother filed a Complaint for spousal and child
support. On August 18, 2014, Father was served with the
Complaint at the Domestic Relations Office. The following day,
Mother withdrew her Complaint for support.

On April 1, 2015, Mother filed a Complaint for child and spousal
support. Father was served with the Complaint on April 6, 2015.
A conference was held on May 18, 2015. . . . An Interim Order
was entered after a conference . . . in the amount of $1,436.99
per month for child support based upon the court’s determination
that Mother’s monthly net income is $4,590.99 or $1,067 weekly
and Father’s monthly net income is $4,698.31 or $1,093 weekly.
Mother’s spousal support complaint was dismissed as no award
was warranted based upon her earnings.

At that time, Mother worked as a Software Tester, a contract
employee, of Agreeya Solutions at Deloitte of Folsom, California;
the contract ended May 30, 2015. She has a Bachelor’s degree in
Computer Application. Mother pays $650 monthly for personal
health insurance for the entire family. Father was added June 1,
2015. Father is the sole owner and employee of Lehigh
Innovations, Inc. He provided his own income tax return but not
that of the business. Therefore, the Conference Officer attributed
a monthly earning capacity for him based upon his monthly
expenses of $5,984.00.
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The parties were conflicted as to whether Father resided at the
marital residence. Mother was found to be more credible. No
agreement was reached; a hearing was scheduled.

On June 1, 2015, Father filed a Petition for Modification of an
Existing Support Order. He alleged that he was currently residing
in the marital residence and paying related expenses.

A hearing [took place] before Hearing Officer Betz . . . on July 29,
2015, . . . HO Betz . . . recommended an order for $914.00
monthly for child support, based upon Mother’'s net monthly
income of $4,757.00 or $1,106 weekly and Father’s net monthly
income of $3,852.00 or $895 weekly.

At that time, Father was unemployed. His income was
corroborated with a 2014 Federal Tax Return, with $24,584
annual income, and an IRA distribution of $49,480.00, $33,480.00
of which was rolled over into another retirement account. Father
generates income from his employment as well as from the profits
derived from the operation of his corporation, a Sub S Company.
He did not report any information on his own 2014 Federal Tax
return as to the operation of the business nor did he provide a
Profit and Loss Schedule.

HO Betz stated that it was disturbing to him that Father testified
that he is “currently on an extension for 2014 to provide the
financial information associated with the operation of the
company.” Ultimately, largely due to the lack of corroborating
documentation as to the income or expenses of the corporation,
Father was assessed an earning capacity of $30.00 per hour with
a net monthly income of $3,852.00 or $895 weekly.

HO Betz concluded that Mother was entitled to spousal support.
Nevertheless, after completing the calculation for spousal support
that resulted in a negative number, he concluded that spousal
support was not financially warranted.

Although Mother testified that she provided for the health
insurance for the family at a substantial cost, she failed to provide
an insurance card or any documentation of same to confirm the
expense of the coverage. Therefore, the HO did not consider it as
part of the calculation.
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[HO Betz authored a recommended support order on August 13,
2015, incorporating these findings].

[Mother filed] Support Exceptions [to the August 13, 2015,
recommended Order] on August 24, 2015, requesting credit for
the health insurance that she provided for the family. [She
withdrew] the exceptions . . . on September 3, 2015.

Mother’s Petition for Modification. On September 3, 2015, Mother
filed a Petition for Modification of the August 13, 2015, Order.
Paragraph 2 of her Petition reads: "“Petitioner is entitled to
reinstatement because of the following material and substantial
change in circumstance: the Health Insurance Premium Amount,
$653.37—1like before.”

A conference was held on November 17, 2015, before [the same
hearing officer as before]. At the conference, medical insurance
coverage was established at $653.37 and child care costs of
$279.30 weekly. At the time of the conference, Mother was
employed as a contractor. Mother’s income is based upon her pay
of $45 per hour at full time. At the time of the conference, Father
was unemployed and was attributed with an earning capacity as
established in the August 13, 2015, Order.

Mother’s Alimony Pendente Lite (APL). On February 3, 2016,
Mother filed a Praecipe for [APL] which was Count 1 of the
Counterclaim in the February 3, 2016, Answer and Counterclaim
in Divorce filed [in the Court of Common Pleas of Lehigh County].

Hearings were held on January 12, 2016, and February 11, 2016.
On March 14, 2016, HO Betz recommended a [four-phase support
order encompassing Father’s varying support obligations effective
from September 3, 2015 to December 3, 2014, December 4, 2015
to December 31, 2015, January 1, 2016 to February 2, 2016, and
February 3, 2016 forward]. The four-phase order was due to the
multiple petitions, the different filing dates of the petitions, the
changing incomes of Mother and of Father, the changing expenses
of health insurance, child care, and, finally, the mortgage
deviation.

Trial Court Memorandum Decision, 12/20/16 at 1-5.
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On April 4, 2016, Father filed his “Child Support and Alimony Pendente
Lite (APL) Exceptions[.]” By Order dated December 20, 2016, the trial court
reduced Father’s arrearages by $94.62—in acceptance of Father’s exception
to the amount of the health insurance expense that was attributable to the
children—but otherwise made final the interim Order of Support of March 14,
2016. This timely appeal followed.

Appellant raises the following issues for our consideration:

I. WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FINDING
THAT A MATERIAL AND SUBSTANTIAL CHANGE IN
CIRCUMSTANCE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE ENTRY OF
THE RECOMMENDED ORDER OF AUGUST 13, 2015,
AND THE FILING OF A SUBSEQUENT PETITION TO
MODIFY ON SEPTEMBER 3, 2015, WHICH PETITION
WAS FILED PRIOR TO THE EARLIER ORDER
BECOMING FINAL?

II. WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN CONCLUDING
THAT A MATERIAL AND SUBSTANTIAL CHANGE IN
CIRCUMSTANCES OCCURRED WHERE THE ONLY
ALLEGED CHANGE NOTED WITHIN THE PETITION TO
MODIFY FILED ON SEPTEMBER 3, 2015, WAS THE
REQUEST TO INCLUDE HEALTH INSURANCE
PREMIUMS PAID BY APPELLEE WHICH ISSUE WAS
SPECIFICALLY ADDRESSED BY THE EARLIER ORDER
DATED AUGUST 13, 2015?

III. WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED WHEN 1IT
IMPUTED A MODIFIED INCOME TO
APPELLANT/FATHER THEREBY RESULTING IN AN
INCREASED CHILD SUPPORT OBLIGATION WHEN
FATHER WAS ASSIGNED AN EARNING CAPACITY LESS
THAN THIRTY (30) DAYS PRIOR TO THE FILING OF
THE PETITION TO MODIFY, AND NO OTHER
SUBSTANTIAL CHANGE IN CIRCUMSTANCE WAS
ALLEGED?
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IV. WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN CONSIDERING
A PRIOR SUMMARY REPORT WHICH WAS NOT MADE
PART OF THE COURT'’S RECORD AS NEITHER PARTY
NOR THE COURT MOVED FOR THE ADMISSION OF
THAT DOCUMENT AT THE TIME OF THE MOST RECENT
PROCEEDING?

Appellant’s brief, at 7-8.

Our standard review of child support orders is well settled:

When evaluating a support order, this Court may only reverse the
trial court's determination where the order cannot be sustained on
any valid ground. We will not interfere with the broad discretion
afforded the trial court absent an abuse of discretion or insufficient
evidence to sustain the support order. An abuse of discretion is
not merely an error of judgment; if, in reaching a conclusion, the
court overrides or misapplies the law, or the judgment exercised
is shown by the record to be either manifestly unreasonable or the
product of partiality, prejudice, bias or ill will, discretion has been
abused. In addition, we note that the duty to support one's child
is absolute, and the purpose of child support is to promote the
child's best interests.

Krebs v. Krebs, 944 A.2d 768, 772 (Pa.Super. 2008) (quoting Mencer v.
Ruch, 928 A.2d 294, 297 (Pa.Super. 2007)).

After a thorough review of the record, the briefs of the parties, the
applicable law, and the reasoned opinion of the Honorable Michele A.
Varricchio, we conclude Father's issues merit no relief. We reach this
conclusion observing that the trial court opinion comprehensively discusses
and properly disposes of each question presented, see Trial Court Opinion,
filed May 31, 2017, at 1-20. As such, we affirm on the basis of this opinion.

In so doing, we particularly note the court’s cogent explanation of how
Mother’s petition to modify was timely and properly filed, id, at 4-7, and how

a material and substantial change in circumstances regarding Mother’s

-6 -
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payment of the family’s medical insurance supported both the hearing officer’s
recommended order and the court’s subsequent order granting Mother’s
modification petition. Id., at 7-10. We also agree Father may not prevail on
his assertion that the court improperly relied on evidence from a prior hearing
that was not made part of the record during the most recent hearing with HO
Betz. Id. at 16-20. In fact, evidence of Father’s continued failure to provide
documentation of his business-related income—in noncompliance with the
court’s order to do so—was admitted at the most recent hearing through
Father’s own acknowledgment, such that the court’s reference to his earlier
failure to present such court-ordered documentation was mere surplusage
that did not alter the court’s calculation of Father’s income. N.T. 2/11/16, at
69-70. Accordingly, Appellant’s appeal affords him no relief.

Order is AFFIRMED.

J ent Entered.
,4 '//' W

Joseph D. Seletyn, Esq.
Prothonotary

Date: 2/22/18
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On Dacember 21 20 16 this Court entered an Order denymg in part and grant{ng in part
, . the C‘Ir_z_ld Suppart and Alimiony Pergdenta Lite (4 PL) Exceptions filed April 4, 9016, by‘

' —, Appellant, By Order of Court dated Dé'c':ember 21,‘20 16, th;s Cotirt reduced
Husbmé’s arrearaped by $94.62 and affirmed and inade final the interim Order of Support of
l\iféicﬁ 14, 2016. On January 17, 2017, Appellant ﬁn;ebf filed a Notice of Ap‘ﬁéal tothe S@eribr |
‘ Court of Penosylvania at Docke.t Numbet 394 EDA 2017 from the December 21, 2016 Order of
Court, By Order of Court dated J anuary 20, 2017, Appellant was dlreeied t0 ﬁle 3 Conclse ”. |
, Statement of Matters Complamed of on Appeal within twenty»one days of the Ordar On
» : Februmy 10 2017, Appellant timely filed his Concise Statement of Matters Complamed ofom .. -

'Appeal S |
By Order of Oourt dated Februaxy 23, 201’7 the Peﬂnsy}vama Supemor Cmm: ismued a
Rule to Shaw Catse “as to the appeadabihty of the bf the APL portlon of thé order.” On March
3 2017 Appellant ﬁlcd hIs Response to the Rule to Show Cause.. By Orde.r of Court dated

March 6 2017, the Pannsylvama Superior Com't disobarged the Rule to Show Cavse and



' yerbatim: |

Qmamcﬁ thaf: “fmiy ma pomm ai ‘t}:w oxdmr wﬂh ragafd TC} ohﬁd smpport WIH be refamd to ﬁw

pam:l asszgned ft} decide the merts of tlns appe.ai " Th‘lS Court enteréd au Otd&r of Com on

X Murch 6 201 7, dmaoﬂﬂg Appcllant o file- an Amended Comise Statemsnl of Mattets
Compimned of ont Appeal withm fotirtden dﬁys of fhie Otdler takmg mto consxderation the March

: '6 2017, PennsyIVama Supegmr Cmm: Order of CourL Appel &n’c complied and filed bxs

R Amended Concxsa Statement of Matters Complmed of on Appeal on Mareh 21, 201 7

In hxs Amended Co,ncxsa Statement of Matters Complmnad of on Appeal Appellant

' _razses five allagaﬁons of errozs fo;r tha Gourt 5 consxderanon, which are rcproduced here

(1) The- Tnal Court em:d in ﬁndmg thet 2 ‘material and substanhal change m‘ , .
, circumstances nocuxred Dbetween thie"entry of. the Recommended Order on™ .
Avgust 13, 2015;: and ‘the filing of -3 subsaquen’c Petition to Modify on -
September 3, 2015, which Petition wes filéd prior to fhe earlier Order -
becoming final;

(2) Ths Trial Court érved in concluding that a materml aid ‘substantial change in .
circumstance ocgurred where the only aﬂeged change poted within the
Petition’ to .'Modu”y filed Beptember 3, 2015, was the addition of ‘health
insurange covcrage for the. parties’ childmn wlnc‘h issue was speclﬁcaﬂy .
addressad in the earlier Court Order dated August 13, 2015

(3) The Trial Court ‘etred ‘when it imputcd 8 modified. rcomie’ attributed o,
App&ilantﬂ?athar thereby resultmg in"ar iereased child. support obﬁgatxon o
when Bether was assigned an eatning capacity less than, thirty (30) days pnor '
to the filing of the Petition to' Modify, and no ofher substantial ohange in '
olroumstances were alleged or oocirred, .

(4) The Trial Court erred when it failed to devmte from the support detenmnzd by -
the Child -Support (huidelines’ aﬁc?r proper nonsiderahon of the ewdence' :
produced by Appellant/Fathar in support of " the’ factors enumerated in

‘ Pa.R.C.P, 1910:16-5(6). -
() The Tnal Court erted when considering a pmor Sumxnary Rﬁport whmh was?‘

" not part of the’ Court’y’ Record spemﬁoally mtroduced at the time of the’

Hearing befors Hearing Ofﬁcer Betz even if that mformamon was LmoWn o

iha Courtat the time of the Hearing

' Appellant’s Ameni Conmse Stmt 1{( I}«(S) On Decambeer 2016 ﬂ:ﬂB Cam:t entered a -
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Appellant’s twenty-nme exteptions to the i mfanm Order ofMarch 14 201 6, and the Court

B .:. :ncorporate.s said O-pxmon herem The Court wﬂl adﬂfess the remmnmg alle;gahozm of error

o ._relating to the chxld support orderin ’mrn -

- Child Support Ordors -~ .50 '
) Themmn goai of a chﬂd support order IS to s&rve the bast mterests of tbf; ohﬂd:en

: through the provmxon of reasonable expenses,” ,R.K A2 SPL 77 A3d. 33,37 (Pa Super

B 2013) As In custody actxons the “miain’ ooncemzs foﬂhe welfaw of ﬂw chxld " Com. x. fel

: ,Scanlan v Sz:anlarz, 457 A.2d 98 102 (Pw Super 1983) Under thf: law ‘T‘ather has an’ absolute» ‘
. "duty to provida for hxs three chlldren imancmlly even Ift ciuses hardship or requues sacnﬁce v

ERLv.CKL, »126 A.3d 1004,1006 (Pa. Super. 201%), telying on, Chmtiaman v. By, 838 '

- A2d 630, 638 (Pa. .‘2003)(“Eacﬁ parent has a duty which s. wal] mgh absoiute to stpport k has or
her minor chﬂdrenand each may have to make sacnﬁoes in order ‘to meet his burdem”)fmtemal .

mmtmns omxtte@ Addmonally, “{1]11 determining a parent's abihty 10 prov:,de support, The focns o

1s on eanung capacﬁy raiher thiin on the parent's actual ear:nmgs " Reinert v, Reinzrt, 926 A 2d .

L 539 542 (Pa.Super. 2007) {interrial citation omitted),

Stamlard of Rewew
T.he swndarﬁ of appel}ate xemew m’:‘ clnid support matte;cs has zmt shanged, a revxemng

| court must contmuc 0 apply atl abisse of dmcret!ou stamdard Colonna ¥ C@Zonna, 855 A.Zd

B 3 652 (P& 3004 C‘osfellov LeNow, 337A,2d 866, 868 (Peu 1575). A sopport omﬂrwm it e

a be dtsturhcd on appeal unless the inal comtfaﬂed w consxder properly ‘the req;uwsments of t-he -




o , Ruie& vf Cmi Pmcmum ﬁévmmg Acnmzs fm: Suppaﬁ, Fa&(, Py i%f} i e:t a@q c&r '&E}used

its

o : discrahonm appiymg thcse: Rudes: Mschaf 12 Nisafzal 879 A ;'Zd 813 814 (Pa‘ Super 2005),

L '1935

’Callaghan v O’Callaghmz, 607 A zd 735 (Pa’ 1992),Bar]ettav Baletia, 485224 752 (Pa-, o

' ) le “master ] report and’ recommandanon, althﬂugh only adwsory, arg 1o be g:ven the
‘ fullest conmdem‘aon, partxolﬂarly on the questmnof credzbﬂity of w;tnesses, because thé master

’ has ﬁhc opportumty to observe and. assess the bchzmor and demeanor of the- pames ” Taper v

\ o Taper, 939 A2d 969, 973~74 (Pau Super; 2007) Howcver, ﬂle Court i8 obhgated fo “make BN

o mdependent revzew af ‘che [Mastcr s] repm't and recommendauons to deteunme whe’ther thefy am ‘

,appropnare Kohl Y. th] 564 Azd 222 225 (Pa, Supen 1989) Partles pursue cm]y argmnent
at the exceptions hea:mgﬁ and are not psrmltted to inttoduce new evidence at that fime; Sca .
Pa.ILC.P. 1910. 12(g); I}'.embach % fl}*embac}n 615 A2d 33,36 n.2 (Pa, Super. 1992),‘

g C‘unnmghamv Cwmzngham, 548 A2d 611 Pa. Super, 1988),

- Petition to Mod.xfy Chlld Supp ort ﬁled before the Reconiinended Ord er on Augnst 13, 2015
Became Final - . , ‘

‘ Appg:lla,ut’s first isius raised on appetl is that “the Trlal Court erred in finding that maienal
and substahtial change in ciroumstanées ocourred between the ediry of fhie Recomiménded Ordér
ort August 13, 2'01'5,'.a,r§d the filing.of a subsequent Petition to quify on Sq;::t'bmf)‘ér 3, 'ZQIS,, '

* which Petiﬁon'was' filed pﬁor to the ‘earliet O:fdew beéonﬁng final.” Appellant’s Aniénd "Conciée L

) Stmt.,{[l At ihe fime of argument on Faﬂmr § exoepnons in this matter, Father was raptesented )
T by Attcmay I{on Creazzo and the following. exchange took place about the hmalmess Df thej« .
- PenhontoModify | R

Mr Creazzo ‘Well, we're looking at his—
L 4
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O MnCreamzor -lifs Y ifigOme - g . of. &epwmia{:r whm she ﬁled the .
*miodification, the fréitrlely; I'don’s know. that she was even

: perm.it’ced Yor ﬁ]e 2 modification logs then 30" days thzm the

A 5 The C(')l:}.‘rt:: ;15 thatargﬁed in thi exccpﬂcn&?
i, M Creazzo: 'Unfortunataly, not. Your HOnor T just thought of rhat.

RN . Bofry. : .
R The Couft:‘-" So it's watved, Master Betz Damdestoreassass his eammg '

Lo capamty
o ‘,MrCraazzo nght |
| .. ' Notes ofTesﬁmony (N T, ), 7/22/2016 a.t 24 10~23 Pm‘suant to Pa.R.CE; 1910 17@,
| ‘Mattcrs not oeverad by exceptions are deemed wawed unless, pmor to ‘rhe entty of fbe ﬁnal
order, leave is granted to, ﬁle cxcapuons ratsmg those mattens n Intexpreung the 1dentica1
provxslon found in P&KC P, 1920 55 (relatmg fo Bxcepﬂons f0 The D;vo:me Master Report), |
appeﬂate courts havc hald that ﬁulurc 0 taka exception to the master’s report results i in walver of
those xssues on appeal See Sebastzanelli P, Sebasﬂanelli 876 A2d 431, 433 (Pa. Super, |
~2005)(“S1noe Husband was challengmg thef master s conclnsion, and not seakmg to enfomc the
' master’s oonclusxon, Husband should havve ﬁled an exception i’n thm 0as8; H1s faiture to do 50
results in waiver of the claim on appeal.”); Medrdle v, MaArdle, 679 A.2d 1316 (Pa. Super
" 1996), l{ohl V. K’ahi 564 A2d 222, 227 (Pa. Super. 1989). Thus, this Com:t ﬁnds that Appel[ant .
Wmved hlS ﬁrst miatter complatned of on appeal; .
| chertheless, should the- Appellate Court ﬁnd that Appeﬂant’s ﬁrst msae is nof Walved,
' 'this Cow:t i"mds it memﬂess for the fo]lowmg reascms “A party se-elnng i) modify a support N |
order has the buxsdem of provmg a mod:ﬁcanon is wmamed and that he/she p;romptly filed: a

o modlﬂcaﬁon peﬁﬁon.“,‘li'r'ebs 3. Krebs', 944 AQd 768 774 (I’a. Super 2005), mlymg onMaddas' |

o, Dehaas, 816 A.”d 234 239 (P&Super. 2003), appeal demea’ 827 Aod 1202 (Pa. 2003), 23 '
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. modxﬁcaﬁon of B support ord!sr may be ﬁled at any ime and shaII Be granted if'the requesﬁng

" party dernonstrates a substannal ohange in. circumstanccs k& (emphasxs addcd) Hete, the pnor

TR ‘.'mterim order based on the Hearing Ofﬁcer 5 report was filed on August 13,2015, P&R c. P

= : .1910 12 (g) states th&t, “lf rio excapnons are ﬁled wxﬂnn the menty—day period; the mtcnm m"1“’1': o

E o . shall wmtitute B ﬁnal order " If excepnons had not been ﬁlcd In this’ matter, the mtemm urder

g . : would have become a ﬁnal crde;r on Wednesday Septenﬂ:erz 2015. However, Appellee ﬁled

R ) excepuons on August 24 2015 and served a cOpy on Appcllant, tﬁggcnng atwenty—day penod

; .‘ ". .,for Appellant 1o ﬁle cxcepuons Pa.RC.P 1910 12(t) 'I”hat iwenty-day penod would have

| - -expu'ed onWednf;sday, September 13 2015 Meanwhle, on Septembar 3, 2015, Appellee

. .,mthdtew her excapuons aud filed instead her Peﬁuon to Modlfy an Bxisting Support Ordar ag.
- her exeeption WS based upon evidence that was not prﬁsented fo the heanng officer at the

hearmg genmahng the Auguist 13, 2015 Order Appellant did not file any excepnons to the

. .August 13, 2015 O:rder
The Court finds that undex: these circunistarices it was not error for the Heanng Ofﬁcf;r to

g oonmder the Appeﬂee § Petition to Madify'an Exxstmg Stppert Order even tbough the Appellant .

. could have arguably ﬁled excepﬁmns to f;he August 13, 2015 Qrder for another ten days 'w
prevent the Order fmm becommg ﬁnal Here, Appellant did not ﬁla sxesptions, zmd Appc[{oe s

BT _.,exceptxons were mthdmwn 0 the Cout conciudes 11 Wﬁs reasonable for the He.armg Oﬁ:'tcer to - i

- consxdzr the mtawm Qrder ﬁnahzcd beforc Appellee ﬁIed her P&tm:on to Mochfy an Exvmng

o Support Order on Septf:mher 3, 20 15, Moreover, the state legxslamre, through 23 Pa.C S.A

g §4352 parmrts the ﬁlmg of 8 pb*tmon to mcdxfy support at any time. I‘Ims the Court concludes .

\-.



éhat ii was not ermr m mnsmw: t}h@ Wéfs, s Petitmri “{;::,) Mndxﬁ/ ami m ﬁﬁﬁ a m&im&l ;ms,i

substannaf ohange m cm;umstance had ommxred asis mom fully desoﬁbad beiow ‘

Ma’teml and Substantral Change in Circumstance L _
Appellant naxt alleges that “the Trial Court erred in concludmg that a matenal

'and substannal c:hange i mrcum‘;tance occuned whete the only ‘alleged ohange notad

, withhl ﬂle Peﬂuou fo Modxfy filed Sepwmber 3, 2015, Was the additfon of health'

: 'mmance coverage for. the pamf:s chﬁdmn whioh fssus was spcmﬁcaﬂy addressed it the oo

x -,earher Court()rder dated August 13 2015 ” Appellant’s ‘Amend, COHCISG Stmt., 1]2. At iy

T e begmnmg of the haanng on January 16, 2016, the Flessig Offoet iqufed o the

{mﬂfbrial and substanﬁal change in oncmnstance thai Appellea wis allsgmg

Mr. BE’G&.

w7

. M., Sﬁfc'sh:
Mr. Betz.

. Ms, Suresh:
M Betz:

Ms. Suresh:

Mz, Befz:.
.. Ms. Suresh;
- Mt Betz: |

Ms. Sutesh:

© Th this mattcr, ity my undemmndmg that we hirve 4 Petition for -

Modificitios filed by SRS or; Scijtentber 3, 2015, We also havea
conplaint for spousal support filed by mon OQctober 23,

2016, We hiave s claing for wlimony pendente lite filed by,
-on November 20, 2015... Ma’ am, when you filed 3 your Petmon for
* Modification you mdmatcd in your Petition for Modification and I quote

“The healtl; ingurance premiumn amoum $653.37 like bofore.”

'Yes, sir,
. All right, So, that ind{vates to me that that wag s the amount ﬂlatwasm

o ' exisfence at the mne fhat we were hers previously,
Ms, Suresh:’

Yas, sir,

S0, that hias not changed

It has. changed.
Did it change as of Sf;ptember 3rd when you ﬁlcd your petlﬁon for

. _.modiﬁcamm‘?
No, it did not.. -

When dxd 1t change?

“This y year, agam, ‘when thef—

' ,Startnganuarylst? , S
. Yes: The same insurarics wasnotoonﬁnuhlgthefoﬁomg year sq they .

h askcd me o find: somcthing else, So, Lhad to change iy insurance.

Can yoi Idenﬁfy arly other change in circumstance that would have

 ocolirred ori or about September 37d thﬂt would have warranted d.
~ modxﬁcation? ’
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Ms éurm;h Gﬁ&aptembw rd, no R
Mo Betz, - - Allright, We are going to start wm thf; dﬁfamdant 5 ohs qe«ixwhmt o

Would be- “ |

- '.SeeNT 1/12/2016 aM 12-8 16 AsreoountedmmaMemomudmOpmonofDmmbaf’I

Y 2016, although Appellee testlﬁed it the Tuly 29, 2015 hearmg it she ‘provided health nsirats o

P . for the famﬂy at 8 subsmmzal cost she faﬂed to prowde any documentary evidence of the

coverage or medmal msurance expense and thuds the Haaring Officer dld not include: the health
- ‘msurance expense m the August 13 2015 mtenm Oider of Support Appelles ﬁled a Paution fo:
y ’Modiﬁcaﬁon of-an E;,istlng Support Order on Septembcr 3 2015, and again failed to submrt
" ¥ "suppomng docummmf:mn for her payment of the ealth § msnrance, butfthxs time Appellea hatl the o
B msurame ‘eards thh her: and oifemd to show them to the Hearmg Officér, Sce NT. 2 11/2016 |
| At 128 18-129; 15: I{eamng Oﬁicer Betz d&chned to view the ingurance carc{ bul credited hor "

unoppoSed tesﬂmony and inoluded the medwal msurance expense in the child support
calculatlom This Court granted Appollant*s axceptmn to the amaunr of the health fnsurance -
’expanse that was atmbutable to ﬂlﬂ children and reduced the support order so that Appellant’ '
arrearages wers redu:oed by $94 62, Health Iﬂsmnnce premmnis aire ong af the enumemtad .
'addlﬁcnal expenses that a Heanng Officer is to consider in theé Pa, lLC P, 1910.16~4, Calcul anon'.
of Suppqm Obl;gaﬁon, Fox:mula as desoribed frther in Pa.R.C.P, 191@ 16-6, l“Ihe wife's mprg
| o detﬁﬁed dgcount 6f the health fnsurance éos'ts, and édsseésioﬁ of the health insurance 'celrds af :ﬂde‘

. hearlng prcsentcd t’he Hearing Officer with awdenw upon which to base a mochﬁcaﬁou of the SRR
. August 13 2015 Support Order. e SR
Furﬂxemlore, “]‘p] ux:suzmt toa petmon fmrmodsﬁoaﬁom the trier of fact may mcdii‘y cr

tamnnatc an emsﬁng suppm order ih auy appropriate fantier based on the ewdence prasented



P vmﬁbomt rﬁgafd fcx whwh party ﬁ c:& iitx@ petmon for mad:tﬁcatmn 0{1 the ﬁaszs Of @ m&iamai amé

substanﬁal ﬁhangc in mrcumstanees " Pa K. (, P 1910 19 (c) The' Pennsylvama Rule of le

PR Procedure regardmg modiﬁcatmns 0 exxst:mg support orders further states that, “nf‘the trier Of -

L ¥ ,fact ﬁmds ‘(hattherc has been a matanal and substanﬂal change in cxmumstanaes, the: Order may

- be mereased or, decreased dependmg upon the respectxve incomes of the parnes, consistent ‘with

| thc support gmdelines a.nd cmstmg Iaw, and wch pm’ty ] oustodlal tnne w1th the child a7 the tzme '

L thz madiﬁcaﬂan petitmn zshaard ” Pa R.C P 1910,19 (c) Hcrc, although Appellant’s Petmon '

W o Modlfy an Exwtmg Support Order was filed ¢n September 3 2015 the hearings on said

T Peunon, Appellant’s Complamt for Spousal Support filed October 23, 2015, Appellant’sclaml

e ; for Ahmony Pendeme the ﬁled November 20 2015 and Appallee 5 Praecxpe for Alimoxy - -

5 .‘ Pendf;nte the ﬁled on February 3 2016 Were .tmt held until Jenvary 12, 2016, and February 1T,

2016, .
As was stated in the Memorandum Opmmn of Deoembeer 2016 the four phase change

| . to the August 13 2015 Order of Support was “due to the multlp]ﬁ penuons, fhe djﬁ‘erent ﬁhng

s da’ces of the pehuons the changlng incomes of Wlfe and ofHusband ‘the changing axpamas of

o health msurancc: chjld oare and, finally, the mortgage dawamm. Mem, Op., p. 5. As is stated in

' P&RC P, 1910 19 (a), “[t]he exzsfence of additlonal inboms, theomé sourees or asse‘ts 1dez1t1ﬁe«d .
thmugh automate:d methods or otherwsa may also ccnsﬁtute a matenal and subsb&nﬁal change in
‘ cmumsfan.ces Income mcludes “moome derived from busmqss” and pe:sonal parqmsites, such ) :
.' a8 “entertmmncnt and personal automobﬂe expeﬂses pa:d by a party s bumnass, must be meludsd . '. -

o ininbons when calnulﬂtmgspousal andchnld support.” 23 Pa.CS A §4302 stid. Pa. Pm 2d

.....

' | §126 765 Mascm'a % Masaara, 803 A2c1 1186 (Pa 2002)
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In Mawam, the: mal owwft haé axmn&d pr*rqmsxtaa pmwded by Iiu&band’s employm

o ,mcludmg “automabﬂes carp’hones, fuel expenses and automobﬂe msurance” but denimed to-

| includa them because both parnes had beneﬁied ﬁom them 803 A.2d at 1194, The trial aom't s
fo conmder a]l the perﬁncnt crwumstances arid souroes of incotne and base ifs d@O]SIOL'L ong -

. petltlon to mochf) a suppore order on the facts ag they appca.t m the recard. See Mackay v

S Mackay 984 A2d 529 (Pa Super 2009), Grimes ¥, Grimes, 596 AZd 240 (Pa. Super., 1991),

"Lampav Lampa, 537 A Zd 35 0 (I’a. Super. 1988) Here fmm Appellant’s own testimony prigl

B ,E“Xhlblt H~8 the Master uonmdered Appellant’s travel and entertainment EXpEnses, ncluding

. 'anfare, hotels,cac use, and mels listsd at 50, 695.00 for 2015, S6sNIT, 2/11/2016, 51 4
594, Furthexmore, Appeﬂant’s éxhibits revealed fo the Heanng Ofﬁoerthat, “he dcpomted

e nearly $19 000" from Decemiber 2015 1o Februmy 2016 into his personal bank account,

‘ Summary Report, 3/1 0/2016 . 5, .Based upon the foreguing and the reascmng set forth in the

| Deesmben .21 201 7 Memorandum Opitdon, the Court finds that thexe was no error in ﬁndmg that
material and Substanﬁal change in cncumstances had oocur:red since the entry of the August 13,
" 2015 Otdor ofSuppon See Somiti v. Sami 84’7 A24691 (Pa. Supe. 2004). |

, Modxﬁed Income/Earmng Capacity Assigned to Appellant
. Thirdly, Appellant alleges that, “[t]he “Trial Cmnt erred when it lmputed a mod:ﬁed:.

' mcome atmbuted to AppallanffFather themby resulting in an mczfcased chﬂd support obhgation «
. whtm Father was mlgned dn eatning capamty less than thirty. (30) days prior fo the ﬁlmg of the'"'
. _Patnion to Modlfy, ami no other substanmal change in cmumstances were alfeged or ocmxrred " '

Appeﬂanx’s Amand Conmse Stmt 1}3 As d:scussed above, several changes in- cucumstances.'.f' ,

. ’ocourrcd between August 13 2015 and the heaungs before the Hsarmg Ofﬁ%f D Jﬂnﬂmﬁ’ and, “;
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.Fabmary of 203(& Mcxrcovar ‘*‘[ﬂn Pannsylvamu ohild qupport awar;ia are made in damsm:

-relaﬁons matters ni aocordance with” spemﬁo statutory gmdelmes. . The. gmdehnes promd& '

‘ extwmely detaﬂed mstructions for calculatmg spousal and child support awards based on the

obligor's net income fmm aH sourees....” Cammanwealﬂz ¥, H‘aZl 80 A 3d 1204 1216—17 (Pa, .

= ‘2013) (emphasw added} The tarm income is defined as fncome from any sources in. 23 Pa.,
e S A, §4320 Sea also Pa ILC L. 1910, 16-2(a) Normz,[ly, pirsnan to the support gux,delmes,
. :.party g monfhly gross incorne’ is based. upon “at least a six-monih average of all of a party’
‘5; incose.” Pa.R.CP 1910.16-2(a). - o
| : | In the pnor Order of Suppott, the Heanng Officer had assxgned ‘Appellant an eaxmng
| 'capacity pursuant to Pa. R.CP, 1910, 16-2(d)(4) However, at the hearings on the pames |
vanous petxﬁons, includmg the Petition to Modify Support, the Heanng Officer was presented
w1’ch new cwdencc dbout the App ellant’s business income, the bnsmess payment of many of
| ,‘ : 'Appellant's persanal expoenses, unexplained bank deposits gnd the I—Iearmg Officer’s realization
: Fhat,“any.dlf,fqrenca betwecn the amoun_t He billed his customers for his services and the amount
‘ . thathe paid Himself ffém his business was not mken into éoﬁsidarérion" in the prior Ordei‘ of
- E Support despn?e Appellant’s testimony that he paid hitnself $30 an howr while the 8-Corp
: .recelved $83 an hour for hs Work. 'See Suntm, Report, 3/10/2016, at p4. After seemg ‘that the
' , | ﬁgures m Appeﬂa;nt’s bank acoount were ‘wﬂdly mcanmtent” \mth hxs testimony regardmg Ins
- current rafe of uompenstadmn, and his determmaﬁon that t‘he Appellant lacked aredfbﬂity and:-

‘ tansparency, the Heanng Ofﬁcar concluded that it was appmpn&te To reassesy the Appallant’

] g income level bas:od upon the gross income Appellant rewived fmm December 14, 2015 *to X

- erbmazyS’, 2016 Summ Report, 3/10/20]6 at p‘ﬁ
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"In C’Fzzfa’im v, Bagommz, the Pcnnﬁyivama Sapm@r Laﬁni ft:krm d ﬁzﬁﬁ, el

" Ahﬁougb the pari:tes ag,tee that Husband’ A% nnguard accounts ate nonmarital
. property, Hosband clainiy that the triel courﬁrcated theso aceounts’ d:ﬁerently
~ than his other nonmanml assets, jn partienlar, asserting ‘that the assumptions mﬂdc
.- by the court were not, supported by evidents of record and fhat the valuation
. formula it smployed had 7o prccedent, 1., did not follow the formula set forth in*
+ section 3501(a, 1), To support his'argiiment, Hishand relies on'Ney v. Ney, 917
" AZd 863 (Pa.Supcr.ZOO?), contonding tht the trial court considered evidence
ou(mdes the record when it condluded that Husbetid's post $éparation eontributions
., had suffered a 14,5% décline in value, T Ney, the vourt used intéinet searchesio
v+ ald in the deﬁermmmon of the futher's Income for support purposes. That type of |
. action was ot taken by the courthere, Rather, the court relied on the, evidence
., ptes&ntei Addisionially, we agdin polnt out that Husbeid could have produoed
- precise records shawmg the-exact amount of losses and/ot gains  predicated upon
" the post»separanon contributicns he made to the Vangnard accounts; Having
- failed to'do so, Hisbad cannot oomplam thiat the conrt abused jty disoretion in.
.. applying a method that would proguce an esqmtable resolution, See Busse v, _
" Busse, 921 A,2d 1248, 1260 (Pa,Super 2007) (staimg that “the trial court has the .
. uthomty to divide the awdrd as the equities present in the pax’acular case may
. require.”), Having reviewed the record in regard to this claim, wé conclude the
trial covirt did not errin the manrier it valeulated the equitable disteibution of the

Vanguard acemints, thus, Husband’s clmm failg, .

o | 12 A.3d 448, 460-61 (Pa. Super. 2011). Hearmg Ofﬁcar Betz's vahlahon method for

B ‘determmmg Appellant’s inoome for pmposes of child support may have been somewhat unusual ‘
however, this method wes rescrted to becanss of Appeﬁant’s faﬂurﬁ to provide doeumentaﬁon
tbgt ’wonld Bocuraiely demonstrate Appellant"s cturrent jfvome level, Surnm, Reéport, 3/1{/2016,
atp4~5 ‘This Court reviewed the Hearing Officer's calculation of Appellant’s fngome 16&?.;1"1’11 _
itg Mqﬁmranduﬁi Opinion and ﬂz‘e{quI:rt 'incorpoi:atésl and relies upon, the raasoning ﬁ{etciﬁ: c

| Me;m Op. pi7, 9-10. As i Childress, Appellant had ample time o supply the Heating Ofﬁcér o

- "mth the supportmg docmnen’cation that would have relleved the Hearmg Ofﬁcer of the ne.cesmty o

: »,-"to resort fo usmg the deposxts iy Appeliant's bank accouni asa way to ca]ca’late: Appellant’ '

mcome 12 A3d at46 1. Thus, the Court contends that i was ot eftor 10 mzxpute amodiﬁcd
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mmma fo App@limt at the ﬁme Df th@ M‘az‘oh 14 ,2016 Omer of (Laux‘r zmd Appe:nm: s ﬁami

.‘ . '%Xaffption i Mthoutmem‘

s - Na Devmﬁon ﬁmm the Standard Gmdelma Amount

Fomﬂﬂy, Fa’rher argues that the Tual Court erred when xt fmled to dewate from

" .ﬂw support detenmned by the Child Support Gmdehnes afccr proper cons1deratzon of the

awdence produced by Appellan’dFather in support of the factors annmeraied in PAR.C.P,

| l.1910 16-5(b). Tha Couxt notes at the outget that the Hearmg Ofﬁcer 1s only wquxmd to:

Speclfy in wntmg the reasons for. deviating from the child mpport guzdelmes, if he o

| ,determines that adeviaﬁon is requued and Is nd% '}equired 1o dxsmss edch of the factors as . |
) why he did not gmnt g deviation, The Pennsylvama Suparior Court has’ held, L

'“[c]ontmy to Father's argument there is'no requued amount of derta.ﬂ for the tnal cowt’s

o ‘explanahom AJJ that is needed iy that eaumeratcd factors were ponsidered and that tbe

- deviation is based on those consxdemuons.” ERL v C KI 126 A.3d 1004, 1009 (Pa.

Supet, 2015), Purmmnt to Pa.R,C, P 1910 16-3,

(a) Dﬂwa‘mon. If the amount of support deviates from. the amount of suppmrt'
detormined by the guidelines, the tricr of fact shall Specify, in writing or on.the-
' record, the gnideline amount of support, and the reasons for, and ﬁndmgs of fact
+ Justifying, the amount of the deviation:
Note: The deviation applies to the amount of the support obhga‘aon and not to the.

amdunt of income, .

(b)- Factors, In’ déciding. whether 1o deviate from the amount, of support .
deterrined by the- gmdelmes, the trder. of fact shall consider:: (1) unusual neéds
and unusual fixed obligations; @) aﬁler support obligations -of the parties; (3)
other fneome in the household; @, Ages of the children; (5) the relative assots and
libilities of the . parties; (6) medical expenses not oovered by isurimes; m-

standard of living of the parties and their children; (8) in & spousal suppart or - ‘ .

" alimony pendertte hte ease, the dmtmn of the marriage from: the datg-of martiage: .’
to the date ‘of final séparation; and’ (9) other relevant and Appropriate factors, _j ,

mcludmg ’che best m’rerests of the ohild or oiuldren
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H : ‘I”*‘a KL P, 1910 165, The P@msyl%imé Ruies of Ciwiﬁmcadm’a rega:dmg chﬂd support “maka B ‘::
_ciea:c that tha amoxmt Df suppoxt as deterntined from the support gmdehnev is prasumed to be tbe o
. "appropnate amoum of: support and that any dewaiwnmust be based on Rule 1910 16-4mow .
Rule 1910, 15~53 " MoCartyv. Smith, 655 A2d 563, 565 (e Super 1995)(mtcmal citation.

B ormtted)

Upon revxaw of tha record the transonpt of the February 11, 2016 hearmg and the

. Hearing Ofﬁcer 5 Smnmary Report ofMaroh 10, 2016 itis clear that the Hearing Ofﬁcer did

| consxder ﬂw factors hsbed in PaR.C.P, 1810, 16-5 (b) dnd in fact granted Appellant 2 dsvxaﬁon

| ' :for paymg the mortgage gven though hei i not residing in the inarital fesidence, See Summ
Report, 3/10/2016 at p. 6-8. Due tothe mortgage devzatiou, Appellant was not reqmred 0
contnbute Ay addrtlonal sum, by way of support, effective Septemiber 3 2015 untd Decembesr 4,

2015, when Plaintiff"s net monthly income ﬁgnre changed. See Summ. Report, 3/10/2016, at

p.6-8. ‘
In Ball v Minick the Pémmsylvania Supreme Court held that

The trier of faot is Icquued to consider all refevant factors and any ohe’ factor
alone will not necesssirily dictate that the amount of support should be other than
the guideling figure, Rathei, the trier of fact must carefully consider. all the
relovant factory and make 5 reagoned decision as to whether the ::onslderation
thereof suggests that t‘twre dre special needs and/or circumstances whick render’
 deviation necessary. Furthermore, where the trier of fiict, does determine that the.
cireumstances wartant & departure from the gmdeﬁna amopunt, tbs Justrﬁcauon for
any such deviation must be explicitly set forth in writing, giving, particular
_ attention to those. factors which this Comt, in adopting the guidelines, .has
* specifivally deemed relevmlt See PaR.C.P, 1910.16-4(z). Gleneral references 1o
the affect that “all roleVant factors have been oonmderad” is wholly msufficmﬂn

The prcsumpﬁon is strong that thé appropriate amount, of support in each cass is
 the amount as determined from the support guldelines, However, where the facty
démonstrate the inappropnatcness of such an award, the ttier of fact may deviats.

‘ ﬂwrefrom. This ﬂemb:lity iy not, however, intended 1o provide’ the trier of fact

) C O



with unf@tm&i disoretion to, tn each case, deviate from the .raémmxﬁéndé(i amonnt .
of sugport.Deyiation vl be permitted only wheto- spetial riceds aid/r.
. elroumstancoy ave present sucki'as o render an awird tn Hhi amount, of the
S0 puideling figure unjitst or i‘nappropﬁate,‘.’. I .
o g A.241192,1196 (P 1994), Further, ths Pennsylvania Supreme Cout foirid et thit, - -
 there g 0o é{?idéngje‘. présented which -estz:a.'bh'.‘qhed. any spectal gbligations ot -
special ciroumstances Justifying an avward lower than the recommiended guidelinie X

Higure, "The trial Cowrt's primary reason for deviating from the support guidelinex

" -was'that the basic resds of the children could be et by a payment of Iéss than o

- the guideline. amount. - This is an ' impermissible basis, for deviating from . the
guidelinies, Sitice the trial pourt considered & factor that should riot have been
considered in entoring the support ‘awerd here, an. abuse of diseretion is teadily - -

. apparent, Moreover;. as thete were nio additional relevant factors which would -
.. support the trial court's award, application of the above principles dictates thatari . @
- award in: the amount of the appropriate guldeline figure should” have bégn
© ewarded. Actordingly; for reasons othér than’ those articulated by the learned -
Superior Court, the devision of the Superior Court feversing the trial conrt's award
is affirmed, The vase is remanded for the finposition of an award it the amoung of
. the appropriute guideline figure. L .

Ball, 648 A.2dat 1198, Hers, Appelﬁm‘t fafled to develop evidence as to his payment of the.” =
‘martia] debts including the oar Joan payment, personal loan payment, and credit oard expenses,’

... While Appellant fntroduced evidence of sith debs, he did not provs tq the Hearing Offionr’s

E satisfacﬁdu that they were marital debts as opposed to Appeﬂant‘s own sredit card debt

aécgimtﬂated after the parties’ separation, .SeéMcm., Cp., p.8-9; Summ, Repoxt, 3/10/2016, at

" p8Y, Likewise, Appellant sought fo infrodnce proof of his payment of the homeowner’s
‘ assiooiation fees at the éxcepi;ions hearing, however this'evi;lencs was not before the Heaﬁitg :

e Ofﬁp'er,énd thus conld not b considered by this Courtin ;esolvmg,}lusba;id’s .exégpﬁoﬁs. o

Parties pursue atgument only at the exteptions hearings and are not pertitted to in‘l:rodui%é new o

! Appellant's exeeptions refer th

[

- : r .":héHem‘iﬁg"Oﬁ"wéf"s'f{ﬁfbre'to hclgdetheé@eXpmesi;wmaéonsforg dbviatiénmiz; o
- tho APL cafoulation rather the in the caloulation of i child support obligation; ‘ S s



| ovidence at tﬁa% time.. See PaR.CP. '1910.12(g) Trembach . L?femfﬁaa}z&ﬁ A24316 n2
C‘unningham V. Cumzmg]zam, 548 A2d 611 (Pa. Super 1988). ) | o

_ Here the Hearmg Officer properly wnmdered the a\rlde:nce of tecard as to Appellant’

: "' pofential enﬁﬂcment to iy devidtion in hJ.S ohild sypport. obhgation and con"luded thit only 3

moﬁgage demahon was warranted lu C‘ommanwealth ex rel Aremv Arena, the Pennsylvania

Supenor Court caufioned

In nghingthe above evidence, it is important to remember thaiﬁw putpose of a support o N

order is the welfare of the ehildren and nof the pumshment of the father, It must be fadr -
and not confispatory in amount, bcmg intended to ;prowde areasomable aﬂowance fox: ‘
. - support, consideting the propety, mcome and earning capamty ofthe fathe:r, and the :

* station in life of the family. _
S R3IA 897 898 (Pa. Super 1966). The Hearmg Officer’s recummended four part Order of

~ Support ofMamh 14, 2016, was fair, mtended to protect the best interests of the childrén and not
© - fo punish Appellanh Thys, the Court ﬁnds Appelldnt’s fourxh isque raised on appeal tobe

. without ment | ‘ '

Tiie Trial Court's reference fo a p’riér suminary report issued-by Hearing Oﬁice'r

| Lastly, Appeﬂant argues that; “the Trial Court ex:rcd when oonmdemng a pmor Summary"
Report which was not part of the Cout's Record speclﬂcally introduced at the hme of the
Heauug before Heanng Oﬁ'icer Betz avan if that- mformamn was known to the Com:t af the ﬁme .
of the Hearmg " Appallant’s AmencL COIIGISG Stmt 15, In tbxs Court’s Mamomndum Opimon
from December 21 2016 the Comt made the foﬂowmg refemces to &' pnor summary rapoﬂ

uthored by Heatmg Officer Betz on August 13, 2015

HO Betz stated fhat it 'was dmttrrbmg fo hiin that. I—Iusbzmd testified that he'is
“currently 'on &u. extension . for' 2014 to- provide the financial information.
assoctated with the operation of the company.”(August 13, 2015, ‘Sumimary
Report, page 3.) ... In e &ugust 13, 2015 Summary Raport, *the HO noted ﬂlat'

s - 16 ,



Husbanﬁ had failed to tmmg ta the heamng, a gemeral Iedger amd not & le&ger ‘
created for Imgc:mon purpc:ses, which woitld have 1dent1ﬁed his ongoing cotporaté - .
'expenscs as well .as gross income generated through t lie operauon of his busiriess; . .
.- He noted that Fusband falled 1o bring bank’ statements for the. bank accownts’. [ ¢
“associated with his cotpdration or acéounts réceivable i iivoices and reéeipts for - -
aooounts payable in order to- nccurately caléulate the Income generatéd by his. & -
- gorporation..,. Dus to Husband’s failurs to°provide dootmentation in compliance
. with the November 17, 2015 Order’ of Court, as well as with the cdution in'the .
- prior Summary Report,: ulhmately, the HO calénlated Husband's income based
_;+  upon bank deposits as well as Husband’s expenses, .. .
Mem. Op. at p.3, 9*10 The August 13, 2015, Surmary’ Report by Hearmg Officer Befz is part'. -
-+ of the court toord in. this matter and was the basis for the August 15‘ 2015 Order of Cou:rt for '

" child support, Moreovar, Hearmg Ofﬁcer Betz in hls March IO 2016 Summary Rneport". :

} speciﬁcaﬂy references his Augtst 13, 2015 Summary Report in dlscussmg Father's second o
fa;lyxye,to provide dosumentation F‘w}uoh would pamt a clear pmtxzrc ag to, hig ourrent inoome -
level.” Sumni, Report, 3/10/2016, at p.4, A Hearing Officer's Report and Reoommeﬁqgﬁb}a, |
a&hough only a&wsmy [atid not evidence] Is “to be given the fullest consideration, parﬁc;ﬁéyly' |

“on the question of eredibility of witnesses, becange the H.eafing Officer has 'ﬂ_le opportunity fo |
assess the, behavior and demeanor of the perties.” Taper v, Taper, 939 A.20 969, 973;%74. (Pa.
Super, 2007). The information in the August 1, 2015 Surimary Report came from the cvi&enee :

ﬁresented by the parties and their testimony at the July 29 2015 master § heanng which i also of

revotd. The Hoaring Officer slso relied on Avgust 1; 2015 Summary Report and F&ther feuled to. '
| filsan sxccptlon to this reference, issues nct raised in exceptlons ara dcemed wawed, thu-s Fath er
may have waived thw 1ssue on appeal Seo Sebastzanelli v. Sebastimzelli 876 AZd 431 433 (Pa - | , "

' Super. 2005 | ‘ L

If the issue I8 not wawad, hom evet, the Cotrt finds that any error in refemncmg 'the .

i Summary Report would be hannlass error. In contrast to thé trlel oot in Eck v, Eck, this Comt :
417 . .



- ,i way ot r&f@remmg “oﬁwﬁw moord faots.” 4’75 A Zci 825 827’ (P& Supaf 1984},4, ‘ﬁe’ﬁ aisa Ney .
. -Ney, 917 A.Zd 863, 868 (Pa. Supsr 2007)(’Ihe Penﬂsylvmta Supérior Court féversed 4 clﬂld S
| : suppor’n, order where the Court made a detenmnamon of the Father 5 ‘earnings oapacn'y “based_
upon its own mtamat Jdb search,Them is 1o oﬂler evldence of record that ’rhere were smtab!e‘ )

.positmns avaﬂable and that [the father] faded to apply for these posmons.”) While it § zs “wcll~ |

., ‘ setﬂed that a- tﬂal court may not oonsxder evidence outside of the record in makmg 1ts

'detenmnahon,” it is appmpmatf: for the Coun’ to referenue materials “of 1ecor " thiat’ rehed on -
" evideinbe, of recoid at the July 29; 2015 master’s hearing. See cmzdress v, Bogostan 13 A3d'

448, 460- 6l a Super 2011). Hoaring Offcer Betz discussed with-Fathor dyting the January )
13 2015 and Februaxy 11, 2016 hearing his fatlure to- bring appropriate’ documentanon 28
‘described i in the Adgust 13,2015 Order and : as Father Wa_s court orderéd to prm_ade by the

. November 17, 2015 Order of Court,

| Father teshﬁed at the January 1 2, 2016 heam:,g that #h aceordanve with the subpoena he ,
| - had brought hig final 2015 busmess tax rcmrn dated September 10, 2016 as Exlnbn H-6, Sew -
N T, 1/12/18, at 34 7—35 13. Aocurdmg to Fxhibit H-6, Father madc a proﬁt from the operatxan )

of his busmess in 2014 in the ‘amount nf $18,812,00. See N.T., 1/12/16 at 51 19~23 At the‘.'

~ closé of the hearing on Janvary 12, 2016, Hearing Officer Botz stated:

Mr Betzi - I'll tell you what, hefe’s what we’ o gomg to do—,, We're ‘going to’ |

adjourn for todav, the mattet is: going to be reschsdule;d for a half day
" hearing...If yon have those statements that. show' proof of payment, 1
suggest thaf you present them af that txme. All tight, -
Mr Henry We wlll be miore prépared for the next one, Undetstood. -
M, Betz , Au nght Very goocL For pumoscs of tod&y, wer HIC adg oumed.

.. "-..'See NI, 1/12/2.016 at 58 13~59 7, 'I'he parﬁes and counsel for Appellanr Davxd Hemy, Bsqmre
,,‘appcared for a second heanng b&fore Haanng Ofﬁcer Be:t;z on Febn.mry 11 2016 At the _
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Febmary Ii 20% h@&ﬁng, th@ Fafhe:r aubnmted #2015 4 mmme tax ramm for Eus S Caxpomtmn L
a8 Exhxbxt I—I~8 Sep N T., 21172016, at 7 6~ 1:) Whau 'cesﬁfymg befom the Mustér regardmg}us :: :

cmrent employment the followmg exchange ocomred

. Ivir'
. Mr, Betz: .

So, you are temng e you have no ides how mvch. your oompany: 2T

; '. Mr Bctz '

:  generates in gross revenue per month despite the fact that you're: -
. : under & confract, Is thatsomect? o -
Mr, Yes... " .
"Mt Betz: Do you have any’ bank statemems from your busmess accozmt here -

' today? - PR o
Mr- - 1 didn't bring ..., ' K
- Mr. Betz: And you ars tellmg me that this other pamon bough’c shares of the.
, corporation?
- M Correct,
M Betz: Okay. Do you have any corporaté records that refleot thai?

No. I don’t lave that right now..

. Now, we have marked prevmusly Husband’s Exhlbxt § and you

have identified that as your 2015 corporate tax return, Correct?

Mr. ' Comect, -
. M, Betz: Has'this been filed? . :
MO s goingm be final draft copy.

See NIT, 2/11/2016, af 33:14-41:18. ‘Father testified that the nusnbers om the final Ay copy |
wexe accurate and correct and yet admitted later that saveral numbers and fcts in tho 2015 tix
retm:a werg incarrect. See N.T,, 21 1/2016, at 42:3-67: 10 Father also feiled fo bring hig 2014 or' :
201 5 Personal Tax Return, although he admitted that he was awm that he was required to bnng, |
g .Ius personal tax refurns to the' hearmg See. N.T., 2/11/2016, at 6%; 7-70 12, Thus, thene was, "
: ample evidence from the Ianuary 12 2016 hemg and the February 11, 2016 heanng for the.
Court to conclude fhat Husband’s failure to promds documentauon m comphance with the.

g :Novc&mber 17, 20] 5 Order of Gourt penmttad the Heanng Ofﬁwr to calculata Husband‘s income .

. “. baged upou bmk deposm raihar then mcomplete and maccmate tﬁx rﬁ:ﬁm Thus ‘che :

' referenoimg of the caudon 1o Pathet in tﬁhe prmr Summary Report was mem surplusage and not_ T

19



necesmry to t&a Cam’s h@idmg Iherafom any er:rox in thca refefmc:a Wanld be: (hﬂmﬂesq grror -

and thm Court ﬁnds Father 8 Iast oontennon of sm:ar to be thhout mexit, :
BY THE COURT'.
.'sj * lq
U“ ' .’
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